
 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility.

July 8, 2015

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

..

REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA
July 8, 2015

Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM

1) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________
1A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
1B.  Roll Call 
1C. Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change 
to the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

2) PRESENTATION____________________________________________________________________
2A.  Colfax Area Non Profit Update – Jewell DeLapp, President, Colfax Garden Club: Garden Club Tour July

18th and Club Update.

2B. Courage Worldwide presentation – Child Trafficking Prevention

3) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________
All matters  listed  under  the  Consent Agenda  are  considered  routine  in  nature  and will  be  approved  by  one 
blanket motion with a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request 
specific items to be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed 
will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar

3A.   Minutes City Council Meeting of June 24, 2015 
Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 24. 2015. 

3B.  Cash Summary Report May, 2015
Recommendation: Receive and File. 

3C.  Work Order to Holdrege and Kull for Construction Materials Testing for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike
Path Improvement Project
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 28‐2015 Authorizing a Work Order for Construction Materials 
Testing Services for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project with Holdrege and Kull in an 
amount not to exceed $8,505. 

 
4) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________
The purpose of  these  reports  is  to provide  information  to  the Council and public on projects, programs, and 
issues  discussed  at  committee meetings  and  other  items  of  Colfax  related  information. No  decisions will  be 
made on these  issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or 
other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 
 
4A.  Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items All Councilmembers 
4B.  City Operations Update – City staff 
4C.  Additional Reports – Agency partners



 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility.

July 8, 2015

 

Page 2 of 2 

5) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the 
subject jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as 
possible. Comments should not exceed three (3) minutes in length. The Council cannot act on items not included 
on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 

6) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________
 
6A.  California State Water Board Storm Water Strategic Initiative Draft – Posted June 25, 2015

COUNCIL DISCUSSION ITEM. 
6B.  Informational Drawing for New Building at 58 N. Main Street

STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Information Only 
6c.  Staff Hiring Process

COUNCIL DISCUSSION ITEM 

7) ADJOURNMENT________________________________________________________________________
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 

at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited  to  raising only  those  issues  you or  someone  else  raised  at  a public hearing described  in  this notice/agenda, or  in written  correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 



ITEM 2A



ITEM 2A



City of Colfax 1
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, June 24, 2015 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

 

1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER
 

The Regular Council Meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Douglass. 
 

1A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Amy Ugalde, interim Clerk/Typist. 
1B. Roll Call:  

Councilmembers present:  Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, and Hesch 
Mayor Pro Tem Parnham absent while attending League of California Cities 
Mayor/Leadership Forum 

1C. Approval of Agenda: 
On a motion by Councilmember Hesch, seconded by Councilmember Harvey, the 
City Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch 
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Parnham 
 

2 PRESENTATION 
 

2A. Presentation:  July 3rd Event update – Frank Klein, Colfax Chamber of 
Commerce President 

 
Frank Klein acknowledged the efforts of staff and Sergeant Conners to support the July 
3rd event permitting process.  This year’s celebration will be a fun event with the Lion’s 
Club Parade and the Kiwanis Children’s Parade.  There will be over 40 venders and live 
music as well as costumed historic reenactors.  There will be no fireworks, a decision the 
Fire Chief made early in the planning stages.   
In response to the comment that some locals are grumbling because other cities will be 
having firework shows, City Manager Miller stated that the other communities are in 
more populated areas and have more firefighting resources than Colfax.  He confirmed 
that it was a prudent decision for our heavily forested area.  Plans are being considered to 
have a fireworks display for Winterfest or at New Year’s.   
Mr. Klein encouraged everyone to come and enjoy the day – there may even be a Santa 
sighting.  Councilmember Delfino thanked Mr. Klein and the other organizers for their 
hard work.   
 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of June 10, 2015 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 10, 2015. 
3B. Adopt Resolution for Annual Sewer Impact Fee Increase 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 24-2015 Approving the Annual 
Sewer Impact Fee Increase effective July 1, 2015. 

1 of 8



City of Colfax 2
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

On a motion by Councilmember Delfino, seconded by Councilmember Harvey, the 
City Council approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch,  
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Parnham 

 

4 COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS
 

4A. Committee Reports and Informational Items – All Council Members  
Councilmember Harvey 

 Stated that the State Water Resources Control Board is considering a statewide 
restriction on the amount of turf allowed around new buildings.  Please visit the 
website to comment – state regulations should not be “one size fits all”. 

Councilmember Hesch 
 Complimented staff on the successful rebid of the Grass Valley Street project. 
 Commented that the Little League Tournament brought many visitors to town, but 

business owners didn’t seem to capitalize on the potential for extra business. 
 Encouraged City staff to seek insurance coverage for a potential Family Movie 

Night at the Park. 
 Mentioned that staff is already looking into purchasing a shade structure for the 

playground. 
 Presented the concept of renting out a currently vacant room in the Depot 

Building.  Proceeds from rent could be enough pay for maintenance for the entire 
building.  He will bring a detailed report to the next meeting. 

 Reported from the Placer County Transportation Planning Agency (PCTPA); the 
Governor is reducing funding for public transportation in order to fund the high 
speed train. 

 Will be speaking on behalf of Colfax regarding transportation issues in small rural 
communities at an upcoming workshop for the Sacramento Area Council of 
Governments (SACOG)  

Councilmember Delfino 
 Will be attending the Fire Safe Council meeting tomorrow. 

Mayor Douglass 
 Reported that the High School Principal and the Football Coach are eager to 

partner with the City.  The Football Team will be volunteering to help with floats 
and other July 3rd festivities. 

 Attended the SEDCorp workshop. Six Colfax entrepreneurs were also in 
attendance and may receive business loans from SEDCorp. 

 The Little League Tournament was a great event that reflected well on our town. 
 Requested that staff move forward with abatement on the historic hotel.  City 

Attorney Cabral explained the procedure for requiring repair of building.  If the 
nuisance isn’t abated, eventually the City can repair the problems and charge the 
property owners.  Councilmember Delfino asked if the City could take control of 
the building.  City Attorney Cabral responded that if the City has a use and the 
funds to purchase the building, it could indeed acquire the building through the 
abatement process. 

2 of 8



City of Colfax 3
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

 

3B. Operations Updates – City Staff 
 

City Manager Miller  
 As a result of the recent Chamber meeting with local non-profit organizations, 

local service clubs will present updates to Council on a monthly rotation. 
 The Colfax Garden Club will be hosting a Garden Tour on July 18th as a 

fundraising event. 
 The Dollar General construction company is working on site development.  

Inspectors and regulatory agencies confirm that they remain in compliance with 
air quality and other standards. 

 With the resignation of the Community Services Director, staff is working on 
contracts for building inspection services. 

 Caltrans will begin work on the STAA truck route improvements and placed signs 
that they will be closing the Canyon Way intersection at I-80.  Property owners at 
the tail end of the project will make improvements on their properties. 

 The Wastewater Treatment Plant has very low flows but is running well. 
 A meeting for prioritization of City needs and projects will be scheduled as staff 

is available. 
 As mentioned by Councilmember Hesch, staff is researching the purchase of a 

shade structure for the playground.  The Cost should be under $5,000 and funded 
with either Park Funds or Recycling Funds. 
 

3C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
 

Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff Station Commander, Colfax 
 Complimented Officer Nave on the success of the Coffee with a Cop event. 
 Four officers will be assigned to Colfax for the 3rd of July. 
 Sheriff’s Volunteers will visit businesses in town as a community outreach. 
 The Dogs and Chats event will be held in September or October. 
 Requested Council’s opinion of using screens imprinted with historic photos as 

security at the substation. He handed out a flyer to illustrate the proposal. 
Council agreed that this would be beneficial. 

Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol (CHP) Public Information Officer  
 The Coffee with a Cop event was well received.  Other CHP offices throughout 

the state will hold similar events patterned after this one.  He thanked the 
Councilmembers who had attended for their support.   

 Statewide vehicle thefts are down. 
 Local DUI incidents have increased due to the summer traffic to Rollins Lake. 
 As President of the local Little League, he reported that the tournament was 

fantastic.  He thanked Mayor Douglass for attending – people really noticed that 
the City was supporting the event.  Reaction to the “Welcome” on the digital sign 
was phenomenal.  The Little League has already been asked to host again! 

Frank Klein, Colfax Chamber of Commerce President 
 Requested that Officer Nave email images from the tournament for posting on the 

Chamber website. 

3 of 8



City of Colfax 4
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

 Announced that the Chamber has a new website – www.colfaxchamber.com. 
 The local service club meeting was a positive gathering to ensure that all are 

working together to do the best for Colfax. 
 The next Chamber Mixer will be at Sierra Self Storage on June 25th from 

5:30PM-7:30PM. 
 

5    PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Foxey McCleary, 127 Sanders Lane: 
 Provided details about the Chocolate, Wine, and Art Indulgence sponsored by the 

VFW and the SVCC slated for June 27th.  Tickets are $20. 
 She suggested art projects of tiles and planters which could be commissioned to 

beautify downtown. 
City Manager Miller requested that she bring sketches back for Council approval. 
Council commended her on the fine job on the mural at Café Luna. 

Melba Delfino, 999 Pine Street 
 Suggested that the City and Chamber coordinate to notify businesses of upcoming 

events so that the business owners could capitalize on increased traffic into the 
City when something like the Little League Tournament is in town. 

 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

6A. Award Construction Contract for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path 
Improvement, Project No. 12-01.02 

 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Resolution No. 25-2015 Authorizing the City Manager 
to Execute a Construction Contract with Central Valley Engineering and Asphalt, 
Inc. 

City Manager Miller stated that staff is bringing back to Council a new low bidder for the 
Grass Valley Street Crossing project which came in under the Engineers estimate.  The 
Contract has already sent in the required bonds and is set for a quick start time, pending 
Council’s approval. 
Councilmember Delfino requested adding more ADA parking spaces to the plan or at 
least put into the downtown area.  City Manager Miller stated that staff will look into 
adding more ADA spaces.   
There was no public comment 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 
City Council approved Resolution No. 25-2015 Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute a Construction Contract with Central Valley Engineering and Asphalt, 
Inc. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch,  
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Parnham 

 
 
 
 



City of Colfax 5
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

6B. Work Order to 4Leaf for Construction Management and Inspection Services 
for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project 

 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 26-2015 Authorizing a Work 
Order for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the UPRR Ped 
Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project with 4Leaf, Inc. in an amount not to 
exceed $50,000. 

City Manager Miller stated that the City has two companies approved for Construction 
Management through an RFP process.  4Leaf, Inc. has experience with Railroad work 
and returned a cost estimate within the budgeted amount.  Staff is recommending that 
Council authorize a work order for construction management of the UPRR Ped Xing 
project. 
Councilmember Delfino asked if there is a need to negotiate with the other firm. 
City Attorney Cabral confirmed that this will not be necessary as the criteria for a 
consultant is competence and experience, not low bid. 
There was no public comment. 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Delfino, the 
City Council approved Resolution No. 26-2015 Authorizing a Work Order for 
Construction Management and Inspection Services for the UPRR Ped Xing and 
Bike Path Improvement Project with 4Leaf, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 
$50,000. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch,  
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Parnham 

 
6C. Voting Delegate for October 2nd League of California Cities Conference  
 STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss and appoint delegate and alternate as 
appropriate. 

City Manager Miller explained that the League of California Cities requires cities to 
designate a voting representative from those attending the annual conference.  Typically, 
the mayor or mayor pro tem is assigned to this role.  Councilmember Hesch stated that he 
has attended the conference in the past and found it beneficial.  Mayor Douglass is 
planning to attend and offered to be the voting delegate. 

On a motion by Councilmember Delfino, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 
City Council designated Mayor Kim Douglass as the Voting Delegate for the 
October 2nd League of California Cities Conference.  
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch,  
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Parnham 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5 of 8



City of Colfax 6
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

6D. RGS Consultant Contract for Planning Services 
 STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 27-2015 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a Consulting Services Agreement for Planning Services on 
behalf of the City with RGS, in an amount not to exceed $85,500. 

City Manager Miller stated that the search for a Planning candidate yielded both firms 
and individuals to interview, but an in-house individual will serve the City needs most 
effectively.  Amy Feagans was the top candidate.  She works through a Joint Powers 
Authority, RGS, which takes care of all benefits and payroll taxes for considerably less 
than the City has paid in the past.  Ms. Feagans has experience as a planning director, as a 
director of Code Enforcement and has a strong customer service ethic.  She will be able 
to help with the general day-to-day needs of the planning department and conduct 
extensive projects such as updating the traffic element of the General Plan.  Ms. Feagans 
will be on a 2-3 day per week schedule. 
Councilmember Delfino asked if she will be an employee of the City or a contracted firm. 
City Manager Miller explained that RGS functions more as a service than as a firm.  Ms. 
Feagans already works for RGS.  The positive factor in this recruitment is that the City 
now has a list of pre-qualified firms which we could call back if necessary.   
Councilmembers Harvey and Delfino objected to the process of hiring without a 
councilmember on the selection committee. 
Suzanne Roberts, a Colfax property owner, stressed the importance of the Council to be 
involved in the hiring process. 
Ms. Delfino objected to the process of hiring without a councilmember on the selection 
committee, expressing concern that Council, not the City Manager, is responsible for the 
operation of the City. 
City Manager Miller stated that the City is better served if the Council focuses on the 
larger issues and is not involved in detailed day-to-day operations. 
Councilmember Hesch stated that having Council directly involved in hiring creates 
confusion for employees with an unclear chain-of-command and essentially 2 bosses. 
Ms. Roberts stated that the Personnel Handbook outlines practices and procedures and 
they should be followed. 

On a motion by Councilmember Hesch, seconded by Mayor Douglass, the City 
Council voted on Resolution 27-2015 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
Consulting Services Agreement for Planning Services on behalf of the City with 
RGS, in the amount not to exceed $85,500. 
AYES:   Douglass, Hesch,  
NOES:   Delfino, Harvey 
ABSENT: Parnham 

 
The Resolution did not pass. 
 
City Manager Miller explained that the City of Colfax has a City Manager/Council 
model, not a Council/City Administrator model.  The City needs to have a planner in 
place as soon as possible.  Several projects have been submitted and need the planner’s 
expertise for processing. 

6 of 8



City of Colfax 7
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

Councilmember Hesch stated that it will be a good change for the City to have a planner 
in-house allowing the public to ask questions without concern for excessive charges. 
City Manager Miller pointed out that the contract with RGS has a 30 day cancellation 
clause. 
Councilmember Delfino stated that he was not involved in the process because he was 
not invited to the selection committee. 
City Manager Miller stated that it is not the role of Council to micromanage, but to set 
policy.  Potential investors will take their plans elsewhere if they feel that Council will 
politicize the development process. 
City Attorney Cabral stated that this is not a legal issue – Council does not need to be 
involved in operational activities but in governance and policy. 
Christine Issel, a Colfax volunteer, suggested that a member of Council be able sit in on 
the interviews but not weigh in on the selection process. 
Councilmember Harvey stated that the Municipal Code in Section 2 outlines the role of 
City Manager as serving under the direction and control of the City Council.  He feels it 
is important to observe the hiring process. 
City Attorney Cabral stated that the City seems to function as a hybrid between the City 
Manager and the City Administrator model. 
Laura Crenshaw, a Colfax resident, agrees that a good planner makes a difference in how 
the residents feel about the City processes.  She stated that having Council on a hiring 
committee protects everyone’s interests. 
Councilmember Hesch made a motion that Council approve the hiring contract and agree 
to resolve the hiring process issue at another time. 
Councilmember Harvey stated concern that the City is becoming a “contract city”. 
Councilmember Hesch stated that although the City is in a better financial situation than 
it has been in years, the recovery is still tenuous.  It is better in many cases to contract 
than to make a commitment to an individual. 
Councilmember Delfino amended the motion to include discussion of the hiring process 
on the next agenda. 
Councilmember Harvey seconded the motion. 

The City Council voted on Resolution 27-2015 authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a Consulting Services Agreement for Planning Services on behalf of the 
City with RGS, in an amount not to exceed $85,500. (amended to include 
discussion of the hiring process at the July 8, 2015 meeting). 
AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, Harvey  
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: Parnham 
ABSTAIN: Delfino 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 of 8



City of Colfax 8
City Council Minutes June 24, 2015
 

6E. Update on City Hall Staff Recruitments 
 STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Information only, no action required. 
City Manager Miller stated that the City has a number of vacancies.  The first 
recruitment, for the Community Services Director, has been advertised and closes on 
Friday, June 26th.  This position needs to be filled right away.  Staff is shifting some of 
the responsibilities and will contract for specific functions such as building inspections.   
The next recruitments will be for an in-house Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
Chief Plant Operator.  The Finance Director is finalizing the job description for an 
admin/office assistant.  Once the new Community Services Director is in place the City 
will recruit for a maintenance person.   
Councilmember Harvey commented that the City should be willing to pay more money 
for a WWTP Operator if we could recruit a Level V Operator. 
Councilmember Hesch commended staff for creating a well thought out plan. 
Ms. Crenshaw stated that the process of hiring should be local.  The posting needs to be 
more local-friendly and candidates should be able to contact a committee member not the 
City Manager’s office which can be intimidating. 
City Manager Miller stated that the City Clerk is usually the contact and the recruitments 
are advertised in the local newspaper. 
Ms. Crenshaw stated that it would be good to hire a person that could be trained for a 
position since a love for the community is often more important than a degree. 
City Attorney Cabral asserted that the Supreme Court has determined that hiring based on 
local preference is unconstitutional. 
Ms. Roberts inquired about the status of the admin assistant position.  She stated that the 
position should have been advertised locally and not filled by the temporary agency. 
Ms. Delfino urged the City Council to be sure the job descriptions are up to date. 
 

7   ADJOURNMENT 
 

Councilmember Hesch moved and Councilmember Delfino seconded the motion to 
adjourn the meeting.  Mayor Douglass adjourned the meeting at 9:00 PM.  
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 8th day of July 2015. 

8 of 8



 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE JULY 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

DATE: June 22, 2015 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: May 2015 

 

X N/A FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: May 2015. 

SUMMARY:
Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Cash Summary Report: for May 2015. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:   
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and 
are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports and bank statements.  Detailed 
budget comparisons are provided as a mid‐year report and also as part of the proposed budget process each 
year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in May 2015.   
 

Monthly highlights include: 

 General Fund Reserved Cash is tracking consistently with previous years. 
 The increase in May is primarily due to the 2nd Teeter allocation from Placer County for property 

taxes, sales tax (triple flip) and delinquent sewer charges (not general fund). 
 Upcoming expenses include quarterly payment for Sheriff services and bi‐annual payment for 

purchases on Winner property. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports – April 2015 
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  
d. Daily Cash Summary Report 

ITEM 3B
1 of 10



ITEM 3B
2 of 10







ITEM 3B
5 of 10



ITEM 3B
6 of 10



ITEM 3B
7 of 10



ITEM 3B



ITEM 3B
9 of 10



ITEM 3B



 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE JULY 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED By: Staff 

SUBJECT: Work Order to Holdrege and Kull for Materials Testing Services for the UPRR Ped 
Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project 

 

N/A X FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: $8,505
FROM FUND: Fed RSTP, State
PTMISEA, Local RSTP Exchange

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution No. 28‐2015 Authorizing a Work Order for Materials 
Testing Services for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project with Holdrege and Kull in an 
amount not to exceed $8,505. 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 

On December  10,  2014,  City  Council,  through  Resolution  35‐2014,  authorized  the  City Manager  to 
execute a Consulting Services Agreement with Matriscope, Wallace‐Kuhl, Construction Testing Services 
and  Holdrege  and  Kull  for  on‐call  materials  testing  services.    Staff  solicited  proposals  from  the 
consulting  firms  to  provide  materials  testing  services  for  the  UPRR  Ped  Xing  and  Bike  Path 
Improvement Project.  Holdrege and Kull provided the most responsive bid for the services desired. 

The approved budget for these services is $11,900.  The proposal from Holdrege and Kull is attached. 

Staff recommends that Council authorize staff to prepare a work order  in the amount not to exceed 
$8,505 for Holdrege and Kull’s services for the subject project. 
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
Council authorized a Materials Testing Services budget of $11,900, including contingency, on February 
25, 2015.  Funding for these services is from federal RSTP, state PTMISEA, and local RSTP Rural 
Exchange. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:
Resolution 28‐2015 
Holdrege and Kull scope and proposal  for Materials Testing Services  for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike 

Path Improvement Project 
 

1 of 9



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 28-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING A WORK ORDER FOR MATERIALS TESTING SERVICES FOR 
THE UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT WITH 

HOLDREGE AND KULL IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $8,505 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax, through Resolution 35-2014, 
authorized the City Manager to execute a Consulting Services Agreement with Holdrege 
and Kull for materials testing services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the approved budget for these services is $11,700; and, 
 
WHEREAS, funding for these services is from federal RSTP, state PTMISEA, and local 

RSTP Rural Exchange. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax 

hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a work order for Materials Testing Services 
with Holdrege and Kull in an amount not to exceed $8,505. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 8th day of July, 2015, by the City Council of the 

City of Colfax, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

___________________________________ 
Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

2 of 9



(530) 478-1305 • FAX (530) 478-1019 • E-mail: handk@HandK.net • 792 Searls Avenue • Nevada City, CA 95959 • A California Corporation 
 

 
 

Proposal No. PN15122 
June 15, 2015 
 
 
City of Colfax 
33 S Main Street 
Colfax, CA  95713 
 
Attention: Alan Mitchell, City Engineer 
 
Reference: UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project 
  Colfax, California 
 
Subject:  Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
   
Dear Mr. Mitchell: 

Holdrege & Kull (H&K) proposes to provide construction materials testing services 
during earthwork for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project in Colfax, 
California. To prepare this proposal, we reviewed the following documents: 

 Project Specifications: Contract Document for UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path 
Improvement Project, City Project No. 12-01.02, Federal Aid Project No. STPL-
5187(007) 

 Project Plans: UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project, City Project 
No. 12-01.02, Federal Aid Project No. STPL-5187(007), January 30, 2015 

 City of Colfax Quality Assurance Program (QAP) 2014 

Based on our preliminary review of the improvement plans, H&K anticipates that testing 
will be required for the following construction work items: 

 Construction of new curb and gutter (280 LF) and sidewalk (1300 LF) near the 
existing railroad tracks on Grass Valley Street, 

 Construction of a curbed median to each side of the tracks, 

 Construction drainage improvements (including approximately 60 feet of storm 
drain trench backfill),  

 Placement and compaction of soil between the curb and sidewalk,

3 of 9



Proposal No. PN15122 Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
June 15, 2015  Page 2 

 

 

Holdrege & Kull 

 

 Construction of a commercial driveway (800 SF), and 

 Removal and repaving of the roadway surface (720 SF of dig out and 
approximately 569 tons of hot mix asphalt).  

H&K assumes that a City of Colfax engineer will be observing the contractor’s 
progress and will schedule H&K’s site visits for testing. If H&K is requested to 
provide construction management in addition to materials testing, we would be able 
to revise our scope to include more time at the site.  

Based on our review of the City’s 2014 QAP, and our experience with similar 
projects in the area, we anticipate that the following testing will be required: 

Earthwork 

We have budgeted three hours per site visit for testing of subgrade (three visits), 
mass grading (three visits), utility trench backfill (two visits), finish subgrade (three 
visits), and finished base course (two visits). Field testing will be performed 
pursuant to ASTM D2922 or CTM 231. We have budgeted for up to four 
compaction curves (ASTM D1557 or CTM 216) and four laboratory moisture 
determinations. 

We assume that testing of aggregate gradation and engineering material properties 
will not be required based on a certificate of compliance.  

Portland Cement Concrete 

We have budgeted one, four-hour site visit to test and sample concrete. H&K will 
obtain one sample of freshly-mixed concrete for testing of slump, air content and 
unit weight. One set of cylinders will be cast for compressive strength testing 
(ASTM C39).  

We assume that testing of aggregate and Portland cement / fly ash will not be 
required based on a certificate of compliance. We assume that no water testing will 
be required. 

Hot Mix Asphalt 

We have budgeted up to eight hours for observation during paving and collection of 
aggregate samples from the plant, if required. We have budgeted for testing of up 
two samples, if required, for bulk density (CTM 308), specific gravity (CTM 309), 
asphalt content (CTM 382) and durability index (CTM 229). 

4 of 9





Proposal No. PN15122 Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
June 15, 2015  Page 4 

 

 

Holdrege & Kull 

 

fee schedule in effect at the time services are provided. Our 2015 fee schedule is 
attached.  

Should any conditions be encountered which require additional testing outside the 
scope of services outlined above, we will advise you promptly and obtain your 
approval on a recommended course of action. Fees associated with retesting of 
work not in compliance with the project specifications can be noted on invoices and 
are not included in the fee estimate. 

If this proposal is acceptable, please contact us to develop a services agreement. 
H&K appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal, and we look forward to 
working with you on this project. If you have any questions or need further 
information, please contact us. 

Sincerely, 

HOLDREGE & KULL 
 
 
Jason W. Muir, PE, GE 
Principal Engineer 
 
Attached:  Table 1, Fee Estimate 

Fee Schedule 
 
F:\2 Proposals\PN15122 Colfax UPRR Pedestrian and Bike Path Improvements\PN15122 H&K Proposal for Construction 
Materials Testing, Colfax UPRR Ped and Bike Path Improvements.docx 



Table 1 - Fee Estimate for Colfax UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project
Rate Summary:

Proposal No.: PN15122 $105 Soil and Material Tester, Prevailing $75 Project Assistant

Date: 6/15/2015 $125 Staff Engineer, Grading Summary $0.65 Mileage

Plans: UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project

Field Services and Support Laboratory

S
ta

ff 
/ M

ile
a

g
e

S
ite

 V
is

its
 / 

Q
u

a
n

ity

H
o

u
rs

 / 
Q

ty
 p

e
r 

V
is

it 

T
o

ta
l H

o
u

rs
 / 

Q
u

a
n

ity

U
n

it 
C

o
st

L
a

b
o

r 
/ M

ila
g

e
 C

o
st

M
a

xi
m

u
m

 D
e

n
si

ty
 D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 

A
S

T
M

 D
1

5
5

7
 (

4
-i

n
ch

 c
u

rv
e

)

M
a

xi
m

u
m

 D
e

n
si

ty
 D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 

A
S

T
M

 D
1

5
5

7
 (

6
-i

n
ch

 c
u

rv
e

)

M
o

is
tu

re
 D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
A

S
T

M
 D

2
2

1
6

C
o

m
p

re
ss

iv
e

 S
tr

e
n

g
th

   
   

   
   

 
D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 (

C
o

n
cr

e
te

) 
   

   
   

   
   

  
A

S
T

M
 C

3
9

C
o

m
p

re
ss

iv
e

 S
tr

e
n

g
th

 
D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 (

C
M

U
) 

A
S

T
M

 C
1

4
0

H
M

A
 G

ra
d

a
tio

n
, A

sp
h

a
lt 

C
o

n
te

n
t, 

S
ta

b
ili

ty

$195 $205 $28 $30 $184 $723

Soil and Material Tester, Prevailing Wage Tech2 13 3.0 39 $105 $4,095 2 2 4 $912 $5,007

Mileage Mileage 13 30 390 $0.65 $254 $0 $254

Project Assistant PA 1 2.0 2 $75 $150 $0 $150
Report 
Submittal

Staff Engineer PE 1 6.0 6 $125 $750 $0 $750

Tech2 1 8.0 8 $105 $840 2 $1,446 $2,286

Mileage 1 90 90 $0.65 $59 $0 $59

Total Estimated Fee $8,505

L
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
 C

o
st

S
u

b
to

ta
l

Asphalt 
Testing

T
a

sk
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 M

a
te

ri
a

ls
 T

e
st

in
g

Earthwork 
Testing

Field Observation and Sample Collection

S
u

b
ta

sk

D
e

sc
ri

p
tio

n

7 of 9







i 
 

 

 

 
 

Proposal to Develop a Storm Water Program 
Workplan and Implementation Strategy – 
Including Projects for Immediate Action 

 
 
 

DRAFT 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

June 25, 2015 

ITEM 6A
1 of 40



ii 

 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 

To Allow for Double-sided Printing 

ITEM 6A
2 of 40



iii 
 

Table of Contents 
Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................... 1 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Background ........................................................................................................................... 4 

3. Collaboration, Outreach and Process ............................................................................... 6 

3.1. Internal Process ............................................................................................................. 6 

3.2. Stakeholder Involvement Process .............................................................................. 6 

3.2.1. Environmental Advocacy Input ............................................................................ 7 

3.2.2. Municipal Storm Water Input ................................................................................ 7 

3.2.3. Regional Water Board Staff Input ........................................................................ 8 

3.3. Incorporation of Stakeholder Input .............................................................................. 8 

4. Guiding Principles ................................................................................................................ 9 

5. Methodology ........................................................................................................................ 12 

5.1. Identification and Prioritization of Issues Facing the Storm Water Program ...... 12 

5.2.  Identification and Prioritization of Projects to Address Issues Facing the Storm 
Water Program ............................................................................................................. 13 

6. Issues and Projects List .................................................................................................... 15 

6.1. Issues ............................................................................................................................ 15 

6.2. Projects ......................................................................................................................... 20 

7. Project Prioritization and Recommendations ................................................................. 26 

7.1. Immediate Action Projects and Recommendations ............................................... 29 

8. Next Steps ........................................................................................................................... 31 

8.1. Future Stakeholder Involvement ............................................................................... 31 

8.2. Resources ..................................................................................................................... 31 

8.3. Storm Water Program Workplan and Implementation Strategy ........................... 35 

9. References .......................................................................................................................... 36 

 

  

ITEM 6A







2 

concept paper and met extensively with stakeholders, to understand their interests and ideas on 
how to proceed.  The result is this Storm Water Strategic Initiative Proposal (Proposal). 

Guiding principles form the foundation of this initiative and are intended to focus and guide the 
development of this proposal.  Based on stakeholder input, the proposal includes the following, 
guiding principles for the Storm Water Program.   

The Water Boards’ Storm Water Program and overall efforts to manage storm water should: 

1. Treat storm water as a valuable water resource; 
2. Preserve watershed processes to achieve desired water quality outcomes; 
3. Implement efficient and effective regulatory programs; and 
4. Collaborate to solve water quality and pollutant problems with an array of regulatory and 

non-regulatory approaches.   
 

Following the development of the guiding principles, the Initiative identified issues or barriers 
that inhibit the existing Storm Water Program from aligning with the guiding principles.  Those 
issues are identified in this Proposal along with solutions to the issues, presented in Appendix A 
as a list or menu of projects or actions that the Water Boards can implement to evolve the Storm 
Water Program.  The Project List includes the goals, objectives, scope, and resource needs for 
each project, in addition to the Initiative Team’s recommendation of the priority for implementing 
each project.  During the Initiative process, an additional effort was made to identify the projects 
that should receive immediate or near term support.  These projects were classified as very high 
or high priority projects that will fast track key elements of the Storm Water Program and/or 
have current efforts already underway that would allow the project to move forward 
expeditiously.  For clarity, the Initiative Team refers to these projects as the Immediate Action 
Projects.  Eight of the projects in Appendix A. are designated as Immediate Action Projects (see 
Table 5.)  Feedback from the stakeholders, and direction and support by the State Water Board, 
will guide the final content of the list of Immediate Action Projects. Implementing the Immediate 
Action Projects will the top priority for the next phase of the Initiative. 

The next phase of Initiative will be to develop a statewide Storm Water Program Workplan and 
Implementation Strategy (Workplan) for the Immediate Action Projects.  The Workplan will take 
effect upon approval by the State Water Board, and be updated regularly to include additional 
projects, as priority and resources allow. Stakeholder feedback on the recommendations in this 
Proposal will guide the content of the Workplan.  The Workplan and a set of performance 
measures will be posted and maintained on a Water Boards web site.  In order to sustain the 
project and achieve the vision, goals and objectives of this Initiative, the Water Boards must 
commit a sufficient level of storm water resource planning staff.

ITEM 6A
6 of 40











7 

• California Council for Environmental and Economic Balance and Wastewater and 
Municipal Storm Water Agencies, Fountain Valley, August 12, 2014  

• Southern California Environmental Advocacy Organizations, Long Beach  
August 12, 2014 

• Central Coast Municipal Storm Water Agencies, Monterey, August 13, 2014 
• Central Coast Municipal Storm Water Agencies, San Luis Obispo, August 14, 2014 
• Northern California Municipal Storm Water Agencies, Sacramento, August 14, 2014 
• Southern California Interested Parties and General Public, San Diego, August 20, 2014  
• Northern California Interested Parties and General Public, Sacramento,  

August 21, 2014 
• California Urban Water Conservation Council, Sacramento, August 25, 2014  
• Gateway Water Management Authority, Paramount, August 27, 2014 
• U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, San Francisco, October 17, 2014. 

In addition, the Initiative was highlighted through an information item at the State Water Board’s 
July 2, 2014 Board Meeting Workshop.  The State Water Board did not take an action nor 
provide specific direction during the workshop. 

A general summary of the input received from categories of stakeholder groups is provided 
below.  Other less prevalent topics were also discussed and noted during stakeholder group 
meetings, but are not summarized here.  

3.2.1. Environmental Advocacy Input 
Environmental advocacy representatives recognized storm water should be used as a resource, 
the benefits of such use can contribute to water quality and watershed health, and that storm 
water permits should be written to encourage this action.  Environmental advocacy 
representatives expressed the need for storm water permits to include stricter and simpler 
compliance related requirements, such as numeric effluent limitations, and stricter enforcement 
approaches to address permit violations.  Implementation of TMDL requirements was 
highlighted as a priority that should be conducted immediately.  In addition, environmental 
advocacy representatives suggested that storm water permits should provide incentives to 
encourage green infrastructure, retrofits, and multi-benefit projects.  

3.2.2. Municipal Storm Water Input 
Municipalities thought that compliance costs and lack of available funding was the biggest 
barrier to successful storm water program implementation.  Municipal representatives indicated 
that more funding opportunities would significantly assist their efforts to improve storm water 
quality.  Many municipalities felt that the MS4 permits emphasize actions that do not directly 
improve storm water quality.  The municipalities suggested that the permits should focus on 
improvements that will have direct and measureable benefits, such as regional infiltration or 
treatment systems, funding of green street projects, and related efforts.  Another important issue 
identified by municipalities is that significant outreach to target audiences is needed.  The 
municipalities highlighted that local leaders and elected officials must understand the 
importance of supporting storm water quality improvements with adequate funding. 

ITEM 6A



8 

3.2.3. Regional Water Board Staff Input 
Regional Water Board staff generally stated that although statewide consistency is valued for 
effective storm water management, regional differences associated with climate, population, 
density, and significance of storm water impacts should still be recognized.  For areas of 
improvement, regional board staff suggested that TMDL wasteload allocations and receiving 
water limitations should be integrated and effectively implemented in storm water permits.  
While regional board staff considered utilizing storm water as a resource an important issue that 
must be addressed, regional board staff also conveyed that identifying where infiltration and 
retention of storm water can and should occur and the means to encourage it is critical to 
supporting this Guiding Principle.  

3.3.  Incorporation of Stakeholder Input 
The Initiative Team prepared summaries of each stakeholder meeting to memorialize the issues 
and projects identified during the meetings.  Those issues and projects were then compiled and, 
where possible, combined with other similar input to form the basis of the Issue and Project 
Lists.  These were then organized and prioritized according to the methodology presented in 
Section 5.

ITEM 6A
12 of 40



9 
 

4. Guiding Principles 
 

The guiding principles included in this document represent the fundamental values the Water 
Boards’ Storm Water Program aspires to uphold and advance, from the perspective of the 
regulator as well as the regulated community and other stakeholders.  Early in the development 
of the Initiative, the Initiative Team considered contemporary documents including the California 
Council for Environmental and Economic Balance report titled “A Clear Path to Cleaner Water, 
Implementing the Vision of the State Water Board for Improving Performance and Outcomes at 
the State Water Boards”, a letter from the California Environmental Dialogue to  
Mr. Tom Howard, State Water Board, and considered policy related direction from the State 
Water Board’s Executive Office to draft the guiding principles for the concept paper.  The 
Initiative Team used the draft principles during the stakeholder meetings to better understand 
stakeholder interests, and refine and expand the recommendations into the guiding principles 
presented here. 

Guiding Principle 1: The Water Boards’ Programs Treat Storm Water as 
Valuable Water Resource. 
 

Why Is This Guiding Principle Important? 

Storm water is a valuable resource and a critical element of local sustainability.  Past land 
development practices increased impervious areas and compacted soils, resulting in less storm 
water infiltrating and more surface runoff.  Traditional MS4s and infrastructure were designed to 
rapidly convey storm water from the landscape into receiving waters and eventually the ocean, 
bays, and estuaries.  Under predevelopment conditions, storm water would infiltrate and 
recharge the water table rather than being discharged to surface waters.  As a result of land use 
impacts, groundwater characteristics and flow regimes can be altered, reducing available 
groundwater supplies as well as base flow for perennial streams during dry periods.  This 
paradigm needs to shift.  Capturing and using storm water as a resource can provide multiple 
benefits such as offsetting drought related impacts through additional recharge and aquifer 
storage, mitigating storm water pollution, creating open space, enhancing fish and wildlife 
habitat, supporting watershed processes, and improving water use efficiency while mitigating 
the adverse effects of flood flows.  

Guiding Principle 2: The Water Boards’ Storm Water Programs Preserve 
Watershed Processes to Achieve Desired Water Quality Outcomes. 
 

Why Is This Guiding Principle Important? 

In California, pollutants in storm water from urban areas are a primary cause of impairment of 
our rivers, lakes, reservoirs, estuaries, and ocean.  Urbanization causes changes in the natural 
landscape and hydrology resulting in increased loads of pollutants, increased toxicity, changes 
in stream flow magnitude and frequency, changes in the seasonality of various discharges, 

ITEM 6A
13 of 40





11 

True source control would necessitate extensive collaboration with industries and require those 
agencies with appropriate authorities to take action as well in order to achieve success. 

  

ITEM 6A
15 of 40



12 

5. Methodology 
 

The following is a stepwise process to identify, organize, and prioritize the primary issues facing 
the Storm Water Program, and develop potential projects to address those primary issues. 
While the process was largely undertaken by the Initiative Team, stakeholders and Initiative 
Executive Sponsors provided input at key points in the process.  The methodology is shown 
graphically in Figure 1 and described in more detail below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.1.  Identification and Prioritization of Issues Facing the Storm 
Water Program 

Following development of the guiding principles, the Initiative Team began the initial process of 
identifying factors that impede the pursuit and attainment of the guiding principles’ objectives.  
These factors became a preliminary list of storm water program “issues.”  The issues were 
organized according to guiding principles and assembled in a preliminary concept paper 
document that was circulated widely amongst stakeholders.  The process the Initiative team 
used to solicit stakeholder feedback on the preliminary list of issues is described in Section 3.   

In response to stakeholder input, the Initiative Team modified its previously developed list of 
issues to clarify the descriptions of the issues and capture stakeholder perspectives.  
Stakeholders also identified new storm water program issues, which the team added to the 
issues list.  The resulting issues list, due to its comprehensiveness, had substantial overlap 
between many of the various issues.  The team minimized these redundancies by combining 

Figure 1. Storm Water Strategic Initiative Methodology Flowchart 

ITEM 6A
16 of 40





14 

o Does the project have Permittee and/or stakeholder support? 
o Do the Water Boards have the authority to implement the project? Is the issue wholly 

within the Water Boards’ control, or can the Water Boards indirectly or collaboratively 
address the issue? 

o Can the project be done with existing resources (internal), or are external resources 
needed?  

o Does the project leverage other efforts/resources?  
o Are there significant barriers to project implementation? If so, are they technical, policy, 

legal or funding barriers? 
 

Similar to the prioritization of issues, the projects were sorted into very high, high, medium, and 
low priority based on their summed criteria scores.  Some projects were recommended as 
“Immediate Action Projects”.  The Initiative Team and Executive Sponsors find that these 
Immediate Action Projects are ready to begin immediately, provided Water Board resources are 
available.  Immediate Acton Projects meet the criteria of requiring little to no build-up time or 
effort in order to begin. 

  

ITEM 6A
18 of 40





16 
 

Table 1. List of Issues organized by Guiding Principle and Topic 

Guiding Principle 1: The Water Boards’ Programs Treat Storm Water as Valuable Water Resource  

Storm water policy and management actions should optimize the use of storm water as a resource. 

ID Issues Needing to Be Addressed to Achieve the Guiding Principle Priority 
1 Storm water should be managed as a resource to maintain and restore infiltration/recharge and achieve multiple 

benefits such as flood control, drought and climate change preparedness, water supply augmentation, groundwater 
recharge, water quality improvement, habitat restoration/protection, and recreational opportunities. High 

2 Determining the value of storm water and developing a credit program for infiltration in permits can be an effective 
means to meet water quality outcomes. High 

3 Greater collaboration between the Water Boards storm water program and related intra/inter-agency programs is 
beneficial to remove barriers and inconsistency in code related to storm water capture, infiltration, and use.  High 

4 Water Boards need to identify and address how storm water retention, storage and infiltration projects could 
potentially affect water supplies, water rights and associated legal implications from retention, storage and infiltrating 
projects. Medium 

5 Greater incentives are needed to broaden the acceptance and implementation of Low Impact Development (LID), 
such as green streets, green parking lots, bioretention features, green roofs, and native landscaping practices for the 
general public. Medium 

6 Storm water interests should be better aligned with other larger environmental interests to optimize synergistic effects. Medium 

Consistent and widespread messaging is needed to broaden the understanding of the value of storm water. 

ID Issues Needing to Be Addressed to Achieve the Guiding Principle Priority 
7 The Water Boards should be actively involved in developing focused and consistent messaging through public 

(including industrial and commercial) outreach and education regarding improving storm water needs. Medium 
8 Water Board should communicate the importance of storm water as a resource to elected officials, especially local 

government officials. Low 
  

ITEM 6A
20 of 40



17 

Guiding Principle 2: The Water Boards’ Storm Water Programs Preserve Watershed Processes to Achieve Desired Water Quality 
Outcomes  

Storm water permits should provide accountability and support water quality outcomes. 

ID Issues Needing to Be Addressed to Achieve the Guiding Principle Priority 
9 Storm water permit requirements should focus on water quality outcomes instead of minimum requirements or 

actions.  This lack of focus sometimes results in prioritizing resources for actions with fewer water quality benefits.  
Therefore, a more flexible, yet accountable, regulatory approach is needed to allow for multi-benefit projects and other 
customized actions to achieve accountability and water quality outcomes. High 

10 Post construction standards should be revised to adequately maintain and restore watershed processes critical to 
watershed health because current standards are either over protective in some cases and under protective in others. High 

11 Storm water regulations and incentives should be used together to achieve desired outcomes.  Incentives are needed 
to allow for alternative approaches to storm water management, such as watershed restoration. High 

12 Existing development should be retrofitted for storm water management. High 
13 The performance goals and requirements for post construction measures should be consistent in order to lead to 

effective implementation during the planning, design, and construction phase. High 
14 Water Board resources should be increased to provide adequate oversight (inspection, report review, audits and 

enforcement) for the storm water program. Medium 
15 Compliance evaluation (i.e., inspections and report review) should be performed in a consistent manner. Low 
16 Storm water staff should not limit themselves to reworking the same issues when developing permit requirements, but 

rather focus on issues essential to water quality and watershed health. Low 
  

ITEM 6A
21 of 40



18 

Guiding Principle 3: The Water Boards Implement Efficient and Effective Regulatory Programs 

Storm water program funding barriers need to be addressed. 

ID Issues Needing to Be Addressed to Achieve the Guiding Principle Priority 
17 The Water Boards assist municipalities, especially disadvantaged and environmental justice communities, in 

removing barriers that prevent them from fully funding their programs. High 
18 Access to local and state funding opportunities needs to be broadened, especially for disadvantaged and 

environmental justice communities, and non-competitive grant funding opportunities need to be identified. Medium 
19 Better cost estimates are needed for newer storm water strategies. Low 

  20 A clear and consistent understanding of cost of compliance with storm water permit requirements should be 
established. Low 

21 Environmental costs associated with inadequate storm water management should be quantified. Low 

Storm water programs need effective reporting and assessment methods. 

ID Issues Needing to Be Addressed to Achieve the Guiding Principle Priority 
22 Feedback loops between planning, implementation, monitoring and effectiveness assessment should be applied at all 

levels (facility, municipality and state). High 
23 Methodologies, tools, and measures for storm water program effectiveness should be improved to support adaptive 

management and provide data that can be acted upon to improve storm water program effectiveness. Medium 
24 Consistent report submittals into a relational database will benefit Water Board decision-making and program 

management. Medium 
25 Basic Water Board program work and tasks will be more efficient with the use of the latest technology (e.g. tablets for 

inspectors). Low 
26 Water Board databases should be updated and improved to be more user-friendly. Low 

  

ITEM 6A
22 of 40





20 

6.2.  Projects 
Upon completion of the Issue List, proposed projects were developed to address the issues and 
ultimately progress the Storm Water Program toward attainment of the guiding principles.  
Proposed projects were identified during both the stakeholder outreach meetings and internal 
staff deliberation.  Project descriptions were developed for each project and include: 

o Project Title 
o Priority Rank: Project priority rank based on scored criteria; see Section 5 for the 

scoring criteria. 
o Assessment: Explanation of prioritization based on two summary criteria: 1) how 

important is completing the project for the Storm Water Program to align with the 
guiding principles, and 2) how achievable is the project, do the Water Boards 
have the needed authority and resources to complete the project? 

o Issues: A list of the Issue ID numbers (see Table 1) that the project will address. 
o Goal:  A goal is identified for each project and usually associated with the issue(s) the 

project addresses.   
o Objective:  An action item(s) is identified to support the goal.   
o Scope:  A scope of work is outlined to accomplish the objective. 
o Background:  Information, including barriers, regarding the issues and project is 

provided.  Previous and/or current information is also identified to assist in developing 
the project scope. 

o Product and Timelines:  For each major task, the resulting product is identified and 
estimate of the timeline and required resources is provided.  Resource estimates are 
given in terms of both staff resource allocations and contract or non-staff funds.  Staff 
resources allocations are estimated as high, medium, and low staff resource allocations, 
which correspond to greater than three personnel years (PYs), one to three PYs, and 
less than one PY, respectively.  Contract or non-staff resources are estimated as none, 
some, or substantial resource needs. 

 

The complete Project List with full project descriptions is included as Appendix A.  A summary of 
the Project List including project title, resource allocation estimates, and the timeline is 
presented in Table 2.  

In many cases, a single project that addressed multiple issues could be identified.  This 
approach reduced the number of projects and also provided for more comprehensive projects.   
A summary of the issues and the project identified to address the issue(s) is shown in Table 3.  
A review of the table demonstrates that most projects address multiple issues.  

ITEM 6A
24 of 40



21 

Table 2. Project Titles Organized by Guiding Principle and Issue Topic 

 

PROJECT 
NUMBER PROJECT TITLE 

RESOURCE 
NEEDS* 

(Staff/Contract) TIMELINE 

The Water Boards’ Programs Treat Storm Water as Valuable Water Resource 

1 Support Storm Water Capture and Use 

1a. Storm Water Capture and Use Goal Low / $ 2 years 

1b. Barriers to Storm Water Capture and Use  Medium / $$ 
3 years 3 
months 

1c. 
Increase Storm Water Capture and Use through 
Regulatory Approaches 

Low / $ 1.5 years 

2 
Stakeholder Collaboration to Promote Storm 
Water as a Resource 

Low / $ 

2 years  3 
months 

and 
ongoing** 

3 Monetary Value of Storm Water  Medium / $ 4 years 

4 
Senate Bill 985 Storm Water Resource Plan 
Implementation 

Medium / $ 
2 years 

and 
ongoing** 

The Water Boards’ Storm Water Programs Preserve Watershed Processes to Achieve 
Desired Water Quality Outcomes 

5 
Alternative Compliance Approaches for 
Municipal Storm Water Permit Receiving Water 
Limitations 

Medium / $$ 3 years 

6 
Watershed-Based Compliance and 
Management Guidelines and Tools 

Medium / $$$  
3 years 6 
months 

7 
Post-Construction Requirements for Watershed 
Health 

Medium / $$$ 4 years 

  

ITEM 6A
25 of 40



22 

PROJECT 
NUMBER PROJECT TITLE 

RESOURCE 
NEEDS* 

(Staff/Contract) TIMELINE 

The Water Boards Implement Efficient and Effective Regulatory Programs 

8 Funding for Storm Water Programs Medium / $ 
4 years 

and 
ongoing** 

9 
Municipal Storm Water Program Compliance 
Cost 

Low / $$ 
1 year  6 
months 

10 
Industrial and Construction Storm Water 
Permitting Compliance Cost 

Low / $$ 
1 year  6 
months 

11 
Storm Water Program Asset Management 
Planning and Cost Estimation 

Low / $$ 1 year 

12 
Municipal Storm Water Program Monitoring 
and Effectiveness Assessment 

Medium / $$ 3 years 

13 
Storm Water Program Data and Information 
“Open Data” Project 

Medium / $$ 4 years 

14 Storm Water Permit Compliance Evaluation Medium / $ 

2 years 3 
months 

and 
ongoing** 

15 
Standardized Minimum Control Measures for 
Specific Municipal Program Elements 

Medium / $ 
1 year  6 
months 

16 
Statewide Regulatory Framework for 
Municipal Storm Water 

Medium / $ 
5 years 

and 
ongoing** 

17 
Training and Information-Sharing for Water 
Board Staff and the Regulated Community 

Low / $ Ongoing 

18 
Sector-specific Technology-based Numeric 
Effluent Limitations for Industrial and 
Construction Storm Water Permits 

Medium / $ 6 years 

  

ITEM 6A
26 of 40



23 

PROJECT 
NUMBER PROJECT TITLE 

RESOURCE 
NEEDS* 

(Staff/Contract) TIMELINE 

19 Trash Control  Medium / $ 
3 years 6 
months 

20 

 Alignment of Water Quality Statewide 
Planning Efforts with Storm Water Program 
Implementation – Pilot Using the Biological 
Integrity Plan 

Low / $ 2 years 

The Water Boards Collaborate to Solve Water Quality and Pollutant Problems with an 
Array of Regulatory and Non-Regulatory Approaches 

21 
True Source Control and Pollution 
Prevention 

Low / $$$ 
4 years 6 
months 

22 Urban Pesticide Reduction Medium / $ 2 years 

* Resources estimates (Staff/Contract) are presented using the following categories:  
 Staff  
• Low – Less than one person working full time for the project duration  

• Medium – One to three people working full time for the project duration 

• High – More than three people working full time for the project duration 
Contract  
• $ – Less than $100,000 contract for external resources anticipated 
• $$ – $100,000 to $500,000 contract for external resources anticipated 
• $$$ – Greater than $500,000 contract for external resources anticipated 

 
Note - Resources represent average for each project over time and include estimated resources used 
for task being worked on in parallel, as a result these estimates differ from those task specific resource 
allotments described in Appendix A.    

 
** Ongoing indicates that the project will require a continuous but limited staff effort to sustain the results 
of the project.  
 
 

 

 

ITEM 6A
27 of 40



24 

Table 3. Summary of Issues being addressed by each Project 

 

ITEM 6A
28 of 40



25 

 

ITEM 6A
29 of 40



26 

7. Project Prioritization and Recommendations 
 

This section presents the prioritized Project List and the Initiative Team’s recommendations for 
Immediate Action Projects.  Scores were assigned to each project as described in Section 5, 
and based on the scores the project was further delineated as very high, high, medium, or low 
priority.  The results of this process are shown in Table 4.  Several of the projects were further 
identified as high priority projects that are ready to begin immediately, and therefore the 
Initiative Team included them as Immediate Action Projects, described further in Section 7.1. 

  

ITEM 6A



27 

Table 4. Project Prioritization Results 

PROJECT 
NUMBER 

 PROJECT TITLE 

Very High Priority 

1a.* Storm Water Capture and Use Goal 

1c. Increase Storm Water Capture and Use through Regulatory Approaches 

4* Senate Bill 985 Storm Water Resource Plan Implementation 

High Priority 

1b.* Barriers to Storm Water Capture and Use 

5* 
Alternative Compliance Approaches for Municipal Storm Water Permit Receiving 
Water Limitations 

6* Watershed-Based Compliance and Management Guidelines and Tools 

7 Post-Construction Requirements for Watershed Health 

8* Funding for Storm Water Programs 

12 Municipal Storm Water Program Monitoring and Effectiveness Assessment 

13* Storm Water Program Data and Information “Open Data” Project 

16 Statewide Regulatory Framework for Municipal Storm Water 

17* 
Training and Information-Sharing for Water Board Staff and the Regulated 
Community 

20 
Alignment of Water Quality Statewide Planning Efforts with Storm Water 
Program Implementation – Pilot Using the Biological Integrity Plan 

22* Urban Pesticide Reduction 

ITEM 6A





29 

7.1. Immediate Action Projects and Recommendations 
During the Initiative process, an additional effort was made to identify the projects that should 
receive immediate or near term support.  These projects were classified as very high or high 
priority and will fast track key elements of the Storm Water Program and/or have current efforts 
already underway that would allow the project to move forward expeditiously.  For clarity, the 
Initiative Team deemed it appropriate to form a subset of the Project List containing only the 
projects meeting the above criteria, and denote those projects the Immediate Action Projects 
(see Table 5).  The Immediate Action Projects includes Projects 1, 4, 5, 6, 8, 13, 17, and 22 and 
if those projects are implemented immediately, as recommended, significant portions, if not the 
entire project, will be completed by 2018.  Table 5 summarizes the Immediate Action Projects 
and estimates the resources and time needed to complete the projects.  While staff strongly 
supports all eight of these projects, implementation will be dependent on available resources, 
and it may not be possible to simultaneously pursue all eight Immediate Action Projects.  Tables 
6a and 6b present two conceptual scenarios for project implementation based on available staff 
and contract fund resources.  These hypothetical scenarios present two year project resource 
expenditures for the following scenarios: (a) unlimited staff resources and $200,000 of contract 
funds in the first year are available to implement all Immediate Action Projects and (b) four full 
time staff and $200,000 of contract funds in the first year are committed.  See Section 8 for a 
further discussion of resource needs and alternatives for making resources available.   

Projects not included as Immediate Action Projects may also be high priority projects, but the 
lack of current efforts to pursue the projects makes the implementation of these projects less 
time sensitive.  As the Water Boards take action on the recommended projects and the Storm 
Water Program evolves, it will be necessary to readdress the Project List and prioritization 
rankings.  Section 9 outlines the necessary steps to maintaining the relevance of the Project List 
through the Storm Water Program Workplan and Implementation Strategy effort. 

  

ITEM 6A
33 of 40



30 

Table 5. Summary of Immediate Action Projects 

PROJECT 
NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE TOTAL 
RESOURCES*  
(Staff/Contract) 

TIMELINE 

1a. Storm Water Capture and Use Goal 1 PY / $50 2 years  
1b. Barriers to Storm Water Capture and Use  3 PY / $150k  3 years 3 

months 
4 Senate Bill 985 Storm Water Resource Plan 

Implementation 
2 PY / $0 1 year and 

ongoing** 
5 Alternative Compliance Approaches for 

Municipal Storm Water Permit Receiving 
Water Limitations 

3 PY / $250k 3 years 

6 Watershed-Based Compliance and 
Management Guidelines and Tools 

4 PY / $500  6 years 9 
months 

8 Funding for Storm Water Programs 4 PY / $0 4 years and 
ongoing** 

13 Storm Water Program Data and Information 
“Open Data” Project 

3 PY / $100k 3 years 

17 Training and Information-Sharing for Water 
Board Staff and the Regulated Community 

0.5 PY / $0 Ongoing** 

22 Urban Pesticide Reduction 2 PY / $0 2 years 
* Estimates of the total staff and contract resources in Personnel Year (PY) and dollar amounts, respectively, 
needed to complete the project. 
 ** Ongoing indicates that the project will require a continuous, but limited staff effort to sustain the project 
results. 
  

ITEM 6A



31 

8. Next Steps 

8.1.  Future Stakeholder Involvement 
Stakeholder input is invaluable to the Initiative process and is especially important to the review 
of both this Proposal and for the ongoing development of a Storm Water Program Work Plan 
and Implementation Strategy.  Stakeholder input during the release of the Proposal draft will 
shape the final Guiding Principles and the content and prioritization of the Issue and Project 
Lists.  Additionally, stakeholder input regarding opportunities to collaborate or leverage other 
efforts will increase mutual interest and buy-in by more parties, and can substantially enhance 
and extend the available Water Boards resources towards more efforts and projects.  The Water 
Boards will establish a long term, committed process for immediate and ongoing stakeholder 
input and collaboration. 

The projects presented in Appendix A contain sufficient detail for the State Water Board to 
identify and prioritize the projects that the Water Boards will support in the near and long term.  
However, most of the projects in Appendix A will need further development before they can be 
implemented.  In most cases this step will include: 

• Project scope and products will be more clearly articulated; 
• Specific tasks and milestones will be identified; and  
• Budget and resource needs will be more accurately estimated (including information 

about external resources)   
 

Thus, during the development of the Storm Water Program Workplan and Implementation 
Strategy, the Water Boards will actively engage the various stakeholders to provide input 
regarding scope, budget, and opportunities for collaboration to ensure that the project goals are 
met.  Following selection of projects, Water Board staff will continue to include stakeholder 
involvement in the development and subsequent updates to the Storm Water Program 
Workplan and Implementation Strategy. 

8.2.  Resources 
The Water Boards have currently assigned four Executive Sponsors and six team members 
each committing between 5 and 50 percent of their time to this Initiative effort.  These staff 
resources were redirected from their existing duties with the expectation that work beyond this 
phase of the Initiative would require substantial, long-term commitment of additional resources 
to evaluate, implement, and sustain the projects and other strategic planning work for the storm 
water program.  

In order for the specific projects proposed in this Proposal to be successful and the ongoing 
tasks associated with strategic planning to be sustained, the Water Boards will need to 
dedicated additional resources to the effort.  The resource need estimates for each project are 
identified in this proposal.  These estimates will be refined as additional information becomes 
available during the public process and consideration of the proposal.   

To provide necessary staff resources, the Water Board may select from four general 
alternatives: 

ITEM 6A
35 of 40



32 

1. Redirect existing resources from other parts of the Water Boards organization to form a 
permanent team dedicated to storm water resource planning; 

2. Request additional resources through the Budget Change Proposal process and then, if 
approved, raise fees or seek other funding to support the new positions; 

3. Not redirect or assign new resources permanently but continue to support the effort with 
existing, temporary “teams” of staff and contract resources as has been done in the past; 
and/or 

4. Extend the duration and deadline for each project commensurate with the level of 
resources dedicated. 

The most efficient team structure will include some staff resources allocated to Regional Water 
Boards to provide balance and guidance for project outcomes that are readily implementable 
across the state.  It is also important to note that Alternative 3, redirecting existing staff as part 
of a temporary team, presents a challenge in that existing storm water staff are responsible for 
core regulatory tasks (permit writing, inspections, compliance evaluations, enforcement, etc.), 
so only a limited amount of these resources can be used for a short period without adversely 
affecting the Storm Water Program. 

In order to better inform the decision on the number of resources committed to the Initiative, and 
specifically the amount of resources needed to make significant progress on the Immediate 
Action Projects by the year 2018, two conceptual scenarios are presented in Tables 6 and 7.  In 
the first scenario, unlimited staff resources and $200,000 of discretionary contract funds for the 
first year are available to implement the Immediate Action Projects (Table 6).  The second 
scenario assumes four full time staff and $200,000 of discretionary contract funds in the first 
year are available to implement some of Immediate Action Projects (Table 7).  These two 
scenarios are proposed as examples of maximum and minimum staff resource allocations, 
respectively.  The scenarios should be used as a high level estimate of the progress on the 
projects in comparison to the resources committed over a two year period, not as a 
recommendation of the projects to prioritize.  Comparing the two scenarios, the second 
approach results in fewer projects implemented during the first year, longer project durations, 
and higher future resource needs. 

ITEM 6A
36 of 40





34 

Table 7. Conceptual minimum resource allocation scenario. 

PROJECT 
NUMBER PROJECT TITLE 

Year 1 
Staff 

Resources 

Year 1 
Contract 

Funds 

Year 2 
Staff 

Resources 

Year 2 
Contract 

Funds 

Future 
Staff 

Resources 

Future 
Contract 

Funds 
            

1a. Storm Water Capture and Use Goal 0.5 $50,000  0.5       

1b. Barriers to Storm Water Capture 
and Use  0.75 $75,000  1 $75,000  1.25   

4 Senate Bill 985 Storm Water 
Resource Plan Implementation 2           

5 
Alternative Compliance Approaches 
for Municipal Storm Water Permit 

Receiving Water Limitations 
  

  
1 $175,000  2 $75,000  

6 Watershed-Based Compliance and 
Management Guidelines and Tools         4 $500,000  

8 Funding for Storm Water Programs 0.75   1.5   1.75   

13 Storm Water Program Data and 
Information “Open Data” Project   

  
  

  
3 $100,000  

17 
Training and Information-Sharing 

for Water Board Staff and the 
Regulated Community 

        0.25   

22 Urban Pesticide Reduction         4   
Total Yearly Resource Needs 4 $125,000  4 $250,000  16.25 $675,000  

Projected Yearly Resource Availability 4 $200,000  4 $75,000  - - 
Yearly Resource Balance 0 $75,000  0 ($175,000) 16.25 ($675,000) 

 

 

38 of 40



35 

8.3. Storm Water Program Workplan and Implementation Strategy 
The next phase of work will be to implement the Immediate Action Projects by developing a 
Storm Water Program Workplan and Implementation Strategy (Workplan).  Based on feedback 
from the stakeholders, and direction and support by the State Water Board, the Workplan will 
include one or more detailed workplan(s) with developed project scopes, timelines, resource 
needs, and a careful consideration of the most effective integration of project outcomes into the 
Water Boards’ Storm Water Program.  The Workplan will be presented to the State Water Board 
for approval and, if necessary, allocation of needed resources. 

The Water Boards will report progress on future Workplan updates and project outcomes, at 
least, every two years.  Regular review of the Workplan will be needed to add or remove 
projects and support a sustained effort to react to the needs and opportunities facing the Storm 
Water Program.  Project priority ranking will likely be reassessed during each Workplan update 
cycle.  The newly prioritized list will be presented to the State Water Board during the 
subsequent Workplan progress report.  The updated Workplan will propose action on high 
priority projects, and the State Water Board will determine if resources exist to implement the 
proposed projects. 

The Workplan is intended to support the evolution of the Storm Water Program for, at least, the 
next ten years.  The Workplan development and updates will be led by the Storm Water 
Program staff, governed by both the Storm Water Program Roundtable and the Deputy 
Management Committee (DMC), and prioritize collaboration with other related Water Board 
programs including basin planning, TMDLs, SWAMP, enforcement, water rights, funding, and 
groundwater management.  Outputs, outcomes and products related to Workplan activities will 
be integrated with the overall Storm Water Program planning and performance reporting system 
(cite http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/about_us/performance_report_1314/regulate/) via the 
existing management and governance systems within the Water Boards. 

The Initiative Team recommends that, in addition to implementing projects identified through the 
Initiative, storm water strategic planning must be made a regular part of the activities for the 
Water Boards.  The team recommends that overall program planning be given a high priority 
and that a specific commitment of resources be assigned to strategic storm water planning to 
ensure strategic project implementation.  This recommended minimum level of support will 
sustain the type of planning activities that will continue to direct the evolution of the Storm Water 
Program, and lead to multiple-benefits solutions to storm water management that achieve 
tangible results in terms of improved water quality and increased water supply.

39 of 40



http://cceeb.org/2013/10/23/a-clear-path-to-cleaner-water/
http://cceeb.org/2013/10/23/a-clear-path-to-cleaner-water/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/docs/strategy_initiative/swsi_cncptppr_6092014.pdf
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/docs/strategy_initiative/swsi_cncptppr_6092014.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE JULY 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: July 03, 2015 

SUBJECT: Informational Drawing for New Building at 58 North Main Street 

 

X N/A FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive for information only, design review to be agendized for a future 
meeting. 

SUMMARY:
The vacant parcel at Depot and Main Streets has been recently purchased and the owner wishes to rebuild a 
commercial building on  the  site.   The  site  is  the  location of  a previous multi‐story  commercial building  that 
burned down, circa 1970’s. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:   

The proposed two‐story building on the long vacant site includes accommodation for retail and office space 
on the first floor and a residential unit on the second floor. The owner has worked with City staff to ensure 
that proposed building meets the City’s zoning and historical district requirements, and will be compatible 
with  the  historical  buildings  on  N.  Main  Street  adjacent  to  the  site.    Staff  is  reviewing  the  existing 
infrastructure on and to the site to restore utilities and will  include recommendations with the upcoming 
design review by the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Building Elevation 
Existing Site Photo 
 

ITEM 6B
1 of 3





ITEM 6B


	00 150708 Agenda
	02A Garden Club Flyer for web
	03A 150624 Minutes
	03B May Cash Summary Report for web
	2015-11 Staff Report Cash Summary May 2015
	150708 May Cash Summary Data

	03C Work Order Holdrege and Kull Grass Valley St Crossing
	Staff Rpt H and K WO 7-8-15
	Resolution 28-2015 Work Order with H and K for Materials Testing for Grass Valley Project
	PN15122 H&K Proposal for Construction Materials Testing, Colfax UPRR Ped and Bike Path Improvements

	06A CA State Water Board - Storm Water Strategic Initiative Draft
	Executive Summary
	1. Introduction
	2. Background
	3. Collaboration, Outreach and Process
	3.1.  Internal Process
	3.2.  Stakeholder Involvement Process
	3.2.1. Environmental Advocacy Input
	3.2.2. Municipal Storm Water Input
	3.2.3. Regional Water Board Staff Input

	3.3.  Incorporation of Stakeholder Input

	4. Guiding Principles
	5. Methodology
	5.1.  Identification and Prioritization of Issues Facing the Storm Water Program
	5.2.  Identification and Prioritization of Projects to Address Issues Facing the Storm Water Program

	6. Issues and Projects List
	6.1.  Issues
	6.2.  Projects

	7. Project Prioritization and Recommendations
	7.1. Immediate Action Projects and Recommendations

	8. Next Steps
	8.1.  Future Stakeholder Involvement
	8.2.  Resources
	8.3. Storm Water Program Workplan and Implementation Strategy

	9. References

	06B 58 N. Main Plan for web
	2015-07-08 Lam building fyi
	58 N Main St Conceptial Drawings




